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e BARNESACERRA, ARIELLE <ARIELLE.BARNESACERRA@nypd.org>
tome =

Good morning,
| have submitted multiple subpoenas in attempt to obtain information on the users making the threats and posting the photos.
Respectfully,

Detective Arielle Barnes-Acerra
109th Precinct Detective Squad

New York City Police Department
37-05 Union Street, Flushing NY 11354
Office: 718-321-2294

Cell: 929-920-4665

From: Lillee Jean <hello@lilleejean.com>
Sent: Tuesday, September 10, 2024 6:52 PM
To: BARNESACERRA, ARIELLE <ARIELLE.BARNESACERRA@nypd.org>

Subject: Recent Update

CAUTION! EXTERNAL SENDER
STOP WHEN UNSURE. Never click on links or open attachments if sender is unknown, and never provide user ID or password. Suspicious? Please
report to this email address: reportphishing@nypd.org
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Lillee Jean @& Fri, Jun7,2024, 8:47P}
Dear Sergeant Den Dekker: In the last two weeks, some strange things have been happening around our property. In no way do we want to waste your time, but becau

Linda Den Dekker <LJDenDekker@queensda.org> & Sun, Jun 9, 2024, 5:53AM w @ <«
to Elizabeth, me «

Thank you for your email. We will be in touch. As always if you feel your life is in imminent danger please call 911

Sergeant Linda DenDekker

From: Lillee Jean <hello@lilleejean.com>

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 8:47:59 PM

To: Linda Den Dekker <LJDenDekker@queensda.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] TRUEMAN

*** External email: Use caution with links and attachments. ***

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. Report suspected phishing emails with the Phish Alert Button or forward them to phish@oti.
as an attachment.

e
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This e-mail communication and any files transmitted with it contain privileged and confidential information from the Queens County District Attorney's Office and is intended solely for the use of the individual(s) or entity to whom it has been addressed. If you are
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please delete it and notify the sender by return e-mail.

o o o o o o o o o o o o oo o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o e s o e e e e e e

11 Attachments - Scanned by Gmail ©® & (&} Add all to Drive
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Cyber Security

POLICE.UK T (i smaimone. /AL O L 5 KEPOITLYDET

Complaint Referral Form

s . . . . o iz . & version: 14.0.0 Internet Crime Complaint Center
Report online hate crime where the individual’s identity is known
Your ReportCyber Receipt T
m Infor
Date:_ 06 May 2024 lhank you for reporting. The reference number for this report is: CIRS-20230510-30. You can provide this number Name: Laura Trueman
Time: 05:03 . . . . ‘o financial institutions or other organisations as proof that a report has been submitted to police via ReportCyber Are you reporting on behalf of a bisiness? Yas
Form completed and submitted on the police.uk internet platform and passed on to South Wales Police at cyber.gov.au/report. Business Name: d/b/a Jeaniez Management Inc. for Lillee Jean
Is the incident currently impacting business Yes
Jownloading your report allows you to have a copy of your report for your records. Note: once you close this page, operations?

Age: Under 20
Address: 4911 215th Street
Address (continued):
Suite/Apt./Mail Stop:
City: Bayside
County: Queens

TV3-3529 rou will not be able to get a copy of your report.

Support services are available

Your details Country: United States of America
Cybercrime can be distressing and may have a severe impact on mental health. State: New York
Zip Code/Route: 11364
If you or someone you know has been affected by cybercrime and is struggling, professional support is Phone Number: 9294899901
i available Email Address: Itrueman1967@gmail.com
Your details : Business IT POC, if applicable:

Other Business POC, if applicable:
For matters requiring urgent Police attention, contact (000). sslliiaane Teppicen®

First name

s |
Lillee For support contact Lifeline™ (13 11 14) Beyond Blue® (1300 22 4636) or Kids Helpline® (1800 55 | Peseription of )
1 ) - avallable 24 hours a day, 7 days a week Provide a description of the incident and how you were victimized. Provide information not captured elsewhere in
Surname this complaint form.
T We have a massive cyber bullying issue that is not properly being taken care of by social platforms. Lillee Jean
rueman
f . . f f Trueman and Laur Trueman have been relentlessly pursued by a group of people from Reddit, that have followed
. N — four report has been referred to the ACT Policing Cyber Issue Reporting System (CIRS) Referral Team for assessment. them onto all social platforms. Additionally they are being attacked by Joshua Conner Moon who owns two sites,
w . . . . . Kiwi Farms and LOLCOWS that dox, harass and do other things to people that are invasive. We have noticed our
* ReportFraud.ftc.gov FTC Report Number lhe Australian Cyber Security Centre (ACSC) will not be able to advise you of the status of your report as it has been bank accounts have charges that are not associated with us, our merchant account for our business has been
' sassed to ACT Policing for their assessment to determine an appropriate police response. attacked, as well as other personal financial as well information being released on the internet. These people, are
196139043 anon except for Moon. We do not know who they are. They are however not only affecting our mental health, but
CO nSU mer Re pOl’t TO Th e FTC >lease note, not all reports will be investigated by Police, but all reports are important as they may provide we are scared that they will hurt Lillee Jean who is 18 and a well known social media personality. At this time we

do not have body guards, and their are credible threats especially two that came in the other night by someone
who You Tube took down and now has joined their group harassing us.

nformation on the latest cyber-crime trends.
The FTC cannot resolve individual complaints, but we can provide information about next steps to take. We share your

report with local, state, federal, and foreign law enforcement partners. Your report might be used to investigate cases in a legal Based on the Information you have provided; someone s harassing you online. This could be a criminal

We need the FBI to help us and take this seriously, we have reported this twice before, and as for Joshua Moon,

. . . . . i o»ffence. who probably has a file with the FBI since he housed the New Zeland Shooter, as well as goading women into
proceeding. Please read our Privacy Policy to learn how we protect your personal information, and when we share it outside the
FTC. What to do now: A s . Pegeiels
About you
Name: Lillee Jean Trueman Email: legal @lilleejeantrueman.com ql? \ FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION
‘J " ReportFraud.ftc.gov
Address: 21270 26TH AVENUE Phone: 929-489-9901 N2y Rep 9 FTC Report Number
. . ) 177066091
CIty: BayS|de State: New York Z|p COde: 11360 Consumer Report To The FTC orf[)lﬂﬂl BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION
Country: USA - i .
B The FTC cannot resolve individual complaints, but we can provide information about next steps to take. We share your report wit Victim Information
What ha ppened local, state, federal, and foreign law enforcement partners. Your report might be used to investigate cases in a legal proceeding. ':raen;%u —— higee dean frueman
) ) o ) ) ) Please read our Privacy Policy to learn how we protect your personal information, and when we share it outside the FTC. of a business?
This complaint details a systemic failure by Reddit, Inc to comply with federal consumer protection laws. For over 11 hours, Reddit Business Name:

Is the incident currently

has hosted unredacted judicial documents, including the handwriting of a New York State Judge and the hand signatures of private impacting business

i 2
citizens: https://www.reddit.com/r/youtubedrama/comments/1g8rfq1/infamous_scammers_lillee_jean_and_laur_trueman/. This data AbOUt you xzzzauons. 20-29
is being utilized by a known international stalking syndicate to facilitate Aggravated Identity Theft and Search Engine Poisoning, Name: Lillee Trueman Email: hello@lilleejean.com Lsn'g‘:ﬂ"ic“m aged 17 or
causing irreparable harm to the victim's consumer reputation and physical safety. Violation of the Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA) Address: ) 3340 169th St
(15 U.S.C. § 1681) Platform: Reddit (r/youtubedrama); The thread authored by "RedRidingHood89" publishes detailed financial Address: p.o. box 640033 Phone: 929-489-9901 ggg::;sn(j&:'illnsuti?f el
data, including OTDA loan records, dentist lawsuit specifics, and tax debt allegations. FTC Nexus: Reddit is functioning as a "de ggzn . mshing
facto" credit reporting agency by allowing the dissemination of private financial "reports" used to deny the victim housing and City: Bayside State: New York Zip Code: 11364 Country: United States of America
L . . . . State: New York
employment. This is a willful breach of consumer privacy protections. 11 Hours Ago (Reddit): The thread Zip Code/Route: 11358
r/youtubedrama/comments/1q8rfq1/ is published. It contains the handwriting of a Judge and the hand signature of the victim's Country: USA Phone Number: 9294899901
. . . . i . Email Address: hello@lilleejean.com
mother. Transcribed Intelligence: User Leif_Henderson transcribes the Judge's orders into searchable text. This allows botnets Business IT POC, if
(Tencent/HostPapa) to scrape the text and link it to explicit search results. Search Poisoning: Simultaneously, explicit keyword What ha ppened g‘:ﬁgfﬁ'ﬂ:{mss POC. if
stuffing (Lillee Jean XXX) is triggered on Bing and Google. This is a "Technical Squeeze" intended to ensure that any consumer applicable:
searching the victim's name sees "Eviction" and "Pornography” as the primary results. Monetization: The thread drives traffic to the On August 30, 2024 someone created an account with Pretected Quotes impersonating my name. | was able to reset the passwo Dessivtionafinaikient
Cleoreytb (VAT 63.910 - Web search portal) nodes and the Kyle Keane LLC, and Lolcow, Farm - monetized YouTube videos, of the account made and it had a birthday of June 7, 1981, and a zip code of 01245 with my name Lillee Jean Trueman on said P
- " : - ; ; _~ s g " " Provide a description of the incident and how you were victimized. Provide information not
futfilling the corporate "Stalking-for-Profit" model. NOTE: The Reddit thread explicitly acknowledges the victim is a "Jane Doe" in account. | am being stalked by a woman named Sandra Schuld, who owns a cult named Lillee Jean Clone Cult for several years n captisedsisawhorentis Complitfont, o el '
court proceedings. By outing her identity and linking it to the Judge's handwriting, Reddit is facilitating Witness Intimidation. The and not only is this identity theft, but the company should not be giving updated quotes to people. This is sensitive information. iieve severaliCa iaposts coifiobeck io/2016: Tierepertis comigiightafier lasnother
FTC must intervene to prevent platforms from becoming tools for "Doxing-as-a-Service." police report with the 109th NYPD, the report number is #8117, and Detective Barnes-Acerra

was assigned. Detective Gismond and Detective Porzelt are handling other aspects of this
case.
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Internet Crime

Complaint Center File A Public _ Industry _
Complaint Info Info

ber
g%vate
Sector

You Have Successfully Submitted Your Complaint e
Thank You For Taking Action For Yourself and Others

Please save or print a copy of your report before closing this window or navigating away from this page. This is the

only time you will be able to retain a copy of your complaint — we will not email or send an electronic version of this
file.

Due to the volume of complaints received, the FBI is unable to respond to every complaint. Please be assured that your complaint will be
reviewed, and you will be contacted if additional information is needed.

Unless you have additional subjects or financial transaction to report, you do not need to submit an additional complaint.

Please consider doing the following:

@ Contact your bank, financial institutions, and
credit card companies to safeguard your
accounts.

« If wire transfers were sent, request a recall and a hold harmless
letter from your financial institutions.

« If a crypto ATM/kiosk was used to send funds, contact the
customer service email on the cryptocurrency company's website as
some companies may refund processing fees with proof of fraud.

@ Safeguard your credit by contacting the three
major credit bureaus.
e Equifax
O 1(800)685-1111
O Equifax.com/personal/credit-report-service
e Experian
D 1(888)397-3742
O Experian.com/help
e TransUnion
O 1(888)909-8872
O TransUnion.com/credit-help

Contact your local authorities and file a report.
Please tell them you filed a report with the IC3.

If you believe your identity was stolen, file a
report at www.identitytheft.gov.

What happens next?
The FBI will review your complaint, however due to the number of complaints we receive each year, we cannot respond to every

submission. The information you have provided enables the FBI to investigate reported crimes, track trends, and in some cases even
freeze stolen funds. Thank you for taking action for yourself and others.

Learn More

Staying Safe Online
Practicing online safety is essential to protecting yourself. Learn online safety
skills through the FBI Safe Online Surfing program.

¢ Common Scams
Get educated and stay safe! Find information on common scams, ways to
prevent internet-based crimes and information on how to remain safe.

o Consumer Alerts
Review alerts regularly published by the FBI to be aware of the latest internet-
based crimes.

* More Resources
Find more resources to recover from and prevent future cyber-enabled crime.
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: @ § Your IC3 Complaint

Submission ID:
Date Filed:
Were you the one affected in this

incident?

Your Contact Information

fdbaee476c5c4e42b4afc90acbac9b610
3/1/2026 4:15:15 PM EST

Yes

Name:
Phone Number:

Email Address:

Complainant Information

LAURA TRUEMAN
9294899901

HELLO@LILLEEJEAN.COM

Name:

Age:

Address:
Suite/Apt./Mail Stop:
City:

County:

Country:

State:

Zip Code/Route:
Phone Number:

Email Address:

Business Information

LAURA RENE TRUEMAN
50-59

3340 169TH STREET
UNIT 2

FLUSHING

NY

United States of America
New York

11358

9294899901

HELLO@LILLEEJEAN.COM

Is this on behalf of a business that was
targeted by a Cyber incident?

Financial Transaction(s)

No

Did you send or lose money in the
incident?

Information About The Subject(s)

No

Name:

Business Name:
City:

Country:

State:

Website/Social Media Account:

Name:

Business Name:
City:

Country:

State:

Website/Social Media Account:

CODY DICKENS

MAHTO TOPAH

POUGHKEEPSIE

United States of America

New York

6/2026

https://x.com/MahtoTopah/status/2027881569218642277?

s=20

JOSHUA CONNER MOON

LOLCOW.FARM

PENSACOLA

United States of America

Florida

https://original.lolcow.farm/pt/res/970999.htm|#970999

| NDEX NO. 703276/ 2026
ED NYSCEF: 03/06/2026
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Name:

Business Name:
City:

Country:

State:

Website/Social Media Account:

L] L]
Name:
Business Name:
Country:

L] L
Name:

Business Name:
City:

Country:

State:

Website/Social Media Account:

Name:
City:
Country:

State:

Name:
City:
Country:

State:

Name:
Country:

Website/Social Media Account:

L] L
Name:
Business Name:
Country:
State:

L L]
Name:

Business Name:
Country:
State:

Website/Social Media Account:

Description of Incident

C. ARAGON

CRISPY'S TAVERN

GILBERT

United States of America

Arizona

https://www.youtube.com/@CrispysTavern
L] L]

TIMOTHY SMITH

WILY KNIGHT

Canada

KYLE MICHAEL KEANE
PRIMINK

WYANDOTTE

United States of America
Michigan

WWW.YOUTUBE.COM/PRIMINK

DANIELLE RIVOIRE
HICKSVILLE
United States of America

New York

SANDRA SCHULD
BIDDEFORD
United States of America

Maine

CURTIS PRICE
United Kingdom

CURTIS PRICE YOUTUBE CHANNEL

NICOLAS Dudley Anner White
FRGMNT Media Group
United States of America

California

CALEB PHELPS
SOURBOYS INTERACTIVE
United States of America
Texas

OOMPAVILLE YOUTUBE

Provide a description of the incident and how you (or those you are filling this out

An hahalf Afl wara vintimizad Dravida infarmatinn nat rantuirad alcawhara in thic
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complaint form:

Forensic analysis confirms that suspect Mahto Topah (Cody Dickens) has escalated his campaign
of digital violence through the creation and distribution of high-fidelity "Digital Forgeries" (Non-
Consensual Digital Imagery - NCDI). Forensic Markers of Deepfake (MARCH 1, 2026): The suspect
published an Al-manipulated image utilizing the victim's archival likeness and daughter's
likeness from March, 2026. Technical analysis identifies the theft of specific assets: (1) daughters
collar bone, face structure, arms, hands, mothers face. Psychological Warfare: The suspect
continues to publish imagery positioning the me with my daughter in weird places, to mock our
current problem with our landlord. This is about the 5th deepfake made by Dickens. Nexus is
that these are right now on LOLCOW.FARM where they are surveilling my house. Federal
Violation: Under the TAKE IT DOWN Act (2025) and the DEFIANCE Act (2026), the knowing
publication of non-consensual

digital forgeries is a federal felony punishable by up to 30 months imprisonment for threats and
3

years for publication. https://x.com/MahtoTopah/status/20278815692186422777s=20

Other Information

If an email was used in this incident, please provide a copy of the entire email
including full email headers.

March Deepfakes by Dickens: https://x.com/MahtoTopah/status/202788156921864227775=20
NOTE TO FBI: THERE ISA 7 YEAR OLD LITTLE GIRL THAT LIVES ON HIS PREMISES - HE IS NOT THE
FATHER, BUT THE STEP FATHER. Dickens attempts at least a few times a week to go on my
websites, even though he is blocked. His current deragotry post to mock our housing situation
says "If acting doesn't pay the bills and housing is lost. An idea. With a love of France, pursue a
career in Pariss"

GOOGLE SEARCHES TODAY

Lillee Jean XXX

Lillee Jean NUDES

Lillee Jean NAKED

Lillee Jean Pornstar

these are all done to poison the search

Are there any other witnesses or persons affected by this incident?

Lillee Jean Trueman

If you have reported this incident to other law enforcement or government
agencies, please provide the name, phone number, email, date reported, report
number, etc.

Joseph gismondi 109th precinct flushing, ny

Is this an update to a previously filed Yes
complaint?

Privacy & Signature:

The collection of information on this form is authorized by one or more of the following statutes:
18 U.S.C. § 1028 (false documents and identity theft); 1028A (aggravated identity theft); 18 U.S.C.
§ 1029 (credit card fraud); 18 U.S.C. § 1030 (computer fraud); 18 U.S.C. § 1343 (wire fraud); 18
U.S.C 2318B (counterfeit and illicit labels); 18 U.S.C. § 2319 (violation of intellectual property
rights); 28 U.S.C. § 533 (FBI authorized to investigate violations of federal law for which it has
primary investigative jurisdiction); and 28 U.S.C. § 534 (FBI authorized to collect and maintain
identification, criminal information, crime, and other records).

The collection of this information is relevant and necessary to document and investigate
complaints of Internet-related crime. Submission of the information requested is voluntary;
however, your failure to supply requested information may impede or preclude the investigation
of your complaint by law enforcement agencies.

The information collected is maintained in one or more of the following Privacy Act Systems of
Records: the FBI Central Records System, Justice/FBI-002, notice of which was published in the
Federal Register at 63 Fed. Reg. 8671 (Feb. 20, 1998); the FBI Data Warehouse System, DOJ/FBI-
022, notice of which was published in the Federal Register at 77 Fed. Reg. 40631 (July 10, 2012).
Descriptions of these systems may also be found at www.justice.gov/opcl/doj-systems-
records#FBI. The information collected may be disclosed in accordance with the routine uses
referenced in those notices or as otherwise permitted by law. For example, in accordance with

those routine uses, in certain circumstances, the FBI may disclose information from your
complaint to appropriate criminal, civil, or regulatory law enforcement authorities (whether
federal, state, local, territorial, tribal, foreign, or international). Information also may be
disclosed as a routine use to an organization or individual in both the public or private sector if
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ed necessary to elicit intormation (I

the performance of an authorized activity. "An example would be where the activities of an
individual are disclosed to a member of the public in order to elicit his/her assistance in [FBI's]
apprehension or detection efforts." 63 Fed. Reg. 8671, 8682 (February 20, 1998).

By typing my name below, | understand and agree that this form of electronic signature has the
same legal force and effect as a manual signature. | affirm that the information | provided is true
and accurate to the best of my knowledge. | understand that providing false information could
make me subject to fine, imprisonment, or both. (Title 18, U.S.Code, Section 1001)

Digital Signature: LAURA TRUEMAN

Return to top

IC3 FBI DOJ Contact the FBI Press Office
Home Page Home Page Home Page (202) 324-3691

Privacy Policy Privacy Policy Privacy Policy Accessibility Statement

About IC3 About FBI About DOJ Questions? See the IC3 FAQ

FBI FEDERAL BUREAU X in

OF INVESTIGATION FBl.gov Contact Center
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@ Your IC3 Complaint

Submission 1D:
Date Filed:

Were you the one affected in thisincident?  Yes

Your Contact Information

B Z0R P07

33c47b4a7fe134221a156945a62ef2da3

1/10/2026 8:18:32 AM EST

Name: Lillee Jean Trueman
Phone Number: 9294899901
Email Address: legal@lilleejeantrueman.com

Complainant Information

Name: Lillee Jean Trueman

Age: 20-29

Address: 3340 169th street

City: Flushing

Country: United States of America

State: New York
Zip Code/Route: 11358
Phone Number: 9294899901
Email Address:

Business Information

Is this on behalf of a business that was Yes
targeted by a Cyber incident?

Business Name:

[T) s

Submission ID:
Date Filed:

Were you the one affected in
this incident?

Your Contact Information

legal@lilleejeantrueman.com

Lillee Jean Trueman

Your IC3 Complaint

72dal164598344d8e9d3420d7a3t

1/28/2026 4:29:52 PM EST

Yes /7 7Z9Zm— 00

Name:
Phone Number:

Email Address:

Complainant Information

Lillee Jean Trueman

9294899901

legal@lilleejeantrueman.com

Name:

Lillee Jean Trueman

735%6/2026

discusses the deepfake "censored videos," a direct link to the deepfake
repository being built via Tencent scraping (this occurs at 41:25 also, the
user AbyssalGrey).

3. 42:54 "JoshuaMoton" asks "is it archived" - in relation to the "host"
discussing the deepfake nudes.

4, At 46:52 "PigeonSalad1996" while tagging the people stating about the
"censored" vidoes, insist Lillee Jean hasn't paid rent to insight people
interested in where she lives (context is Lillee Jean Trueman is a JANE
DOE in a private court case that LOLCOW/KIWIFARMS got HQ
documents of with Jane Doe Exposure on Reddit due to them, and
Judicial Holographic Seal distribution occurring).

5. At 53:10 user PigeonSalad1996 refers to Trueman as a "cum dumpster"
and needing her "resume”.

6. At 1:10:30 by this point a user Deadarm_0 insists they should make a
comedy movie about Lillee Jean with found footage; on a press release
detailing deepfakes made of her shown on the left side to inspire stalking,
and harassment. By

7.1:19:19 users become "sponsors" and commercially, this RICO
syndicate starts earning money off their story.

Kiwifarms/Lolcow.farm:
https://original.lolcow.farm/pt/src/1767384232462.jpg (MahtoTopah
Nexus):

Physical Surveillance: Joshua Conner Moon's platforms continue to host
HQ photos of the victim's residence and speculate on their current
location. This constitutes Interstate Stalking (18 U.S.C. § 2261A).

Provide a description of the incident and how you (or those you are filling this out on

behalf of) were victimized. Provide information not cap 1 in this
form:

On January 9, 2026, a highly coordinated doxing attack was launched on Reddit
(r/youtubedrama) and mirrored on Lolcow.farm. The attack utilizes unredacted court
documents to facilitate physical harm. The Evidence:
https://www.reddit.com/r/youtubedrama/comments/1g8rfq1/ (Posted by
RedRidingHood89). The Content: The post displays the victim's mother’s signature, the
Judge's handwriting, and residential details. This information was exfiltrated to provide a
“roadmap” for the syndicate to locate the victim. Aggravated Intent: The post
specifically mentions “"eviction® and a "two-week" window, a tactic intended to incite
physical harassment at the victim's residence. This is a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1512(d),
as it intentionally harasses a person to hinder or prevent them from attending or
testifying in official proceedings. The Reddit thread functions as a command-and-

18 U.S.C. § 2319): https://publicrecords.copyright.gov/detailed-
record/siebel_PA002559617. YouTube ABC CORP continues to profit off
this. orensic Timestamps: 3:34:13: Explicit sexual references targeting the
victim's body such as her "lumpy titties" 3:36:01: The "People" section of
the stream explicitly solicits and discusses the deepfake "censored
videos," a direct link to the deepfake repository being built via Tencent
scraping (this occurs at 41:25 also, the user AbyssalGrey). 42:54
"JoshuaMoton" asks “is it archived" - in relation to the "host" discussing
the deepfake nudes. At 46:52 "PigeonSalad1996" while tagging the
people stating about the "censored" vidoes, insist Lillee Jean hasn't paid
rent to insight people interested in where she lives (context is Lillee Jean
Trueman is a JANE DOE in a private court case that
LOLCOW/KIWIFARMS got HQ documents of with Jane Doe Exposure on
Reddit due to them, and Judicial Holographic Seal distribution occurring).
At 53:10 user PigeonSalad1996 refers to Trueman as a "cum dumpster”
and needing her “resume". At 1:10:30 by this point a user Deadarm_0
insists they should make a comedy movie about Lillee Jean with found
footage; on a press release detailing deepfakes made of her shown on the
left side to inspire stalking, and harassment. By 1:19:19 users become
"sponsors” and commercially, this RICO syndicate starts earning money
off their story. Kiwifarms/Lolcow.farm: Central Command Hub

Physical Surveillance: Joshua Conner Moon's platforms continue to host
HQ photos of the victim's residence and speculate on their current
location. This constitutes Interstate Stalking (18 U.S.C. § 2261A).

Other Information

If an email was used in this incident, please provide a copy of the
entire email including full email headers.

discusses the deepfake "censored videos," a direct link to the deepfake
repository being built via Tencent scraping (this occurs at 41:25 also, the
user AbyssalGrey).

3. 42:54 "JoshuaMoton" asks "is it archived" - in relation to the "host"
discussing the deepfake nudes.

4, At 46:52 "PigeonSalad1996" while tagging the people stating about the
"censored" vidoes, insist Lillee Jean hasn't paid rent to insight people
interested in where she lives (context is Lillee Jean Trueman is a JANE

DOE in a private court case that LOLCOW/KIWIFARMS got HQ

documents of with Jane Doe Exposure on Reddit due to them, and

Judicial Holographic Seal distribution occurring).

control node. The comments section (149+ upvotes) is being used to disseminate
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RECEI VED NYSCEF:

MASSIVE DDOS ON LILLEEJEAN.COM SERVER - CONNECTED TO
LOLCOW.FARM, KIWIFARMS.ST AND CRISPY'S TAVERN YOUTUBE VIDEO
(WILY KNIGHT CORPORATION, CHRIS ARAGON OF GILBERT, ARIZON),
REDDIT POST DOXXING FAMILY, AND EXPLICITDEEPFAKES PRODUCED
BY MAHTOTOPAH "CODY DICKENS" IN DECEMBER 2025, TO JANAURY
2026. THIS KEEPS ESCALATING. Forensic logs from January 28, 2026,
confirm an aggressive, multi-vector probing campaign originating from
Tencent Cloud infrastructure. This activity is a direct violation of the
Computer Fraud and Abuse Act (CFAA) and persists despite active
Robots.txt directives and formal cease-and-desist notifications.
Technical Modus Operandi: The syndicate utilizes malformed TCP
Three-Way Handshakes (SYN, SYN-ACK, ACK) to maintain persistence
and probe server vulnerabilities for the purpose of exfiltrating private
residential and financial data. THE TODAY NEWS: JAN, 28, 2026: The
following IPs under Tencent's control initiated unauthorized TCP
Three-Way Handshakes and data-scraping sequences, intentionally
ignoring Robots.txt directives (standard "Do Not Track" protocols):
43.163.23.203 SingaporeShenzhen Tencent Critical (Bypass);
43.173.179.156 Singapore Shenzhen Tencent Critical (Risk 98);
43.173.181.119; Singapore Shenzhen Tencent Critical (Risk 98);
43.173.177.40; Singapore; Shenzhen Tencent Critical (Risk 98);
43.173.182.88 Singapore Shenzhen Tencent Critical (Risk 99) -
SAMPLE. These nodes are utilizing malformed or scripted handshakes
to probe server vulnerabilities, a direct violation of the Computer Fraud
and Abuse Act (CFAA). NEXUS: 1. Doxxing and Judicial Interference (18
U.S.C. § 1512) Unredacted New York State Unified Court Svstem

exfiltrated judicial documents (signatures/handwriting) to the Lolcow.farm community.
This coordination is intended to facilitate physical confrontation at the victim's QUEENS
NY (as they keep stating) residence. The presence of '‘RedRidingHood89' and
commenters echoing Primink's (Kyle Keane LLC) ‘tombstone' rhetoric proves a unified
intent to 'rid the world' of the victim through state-facilitated harassment. Instructional
Harassment; Comments like: *Everyone go to [link] and report her,” or "Check lolcow";
Proves Intent to Harm and coordination under 18 U.S.C. § 2261A. Primink (Kyle Keane
LLC): Previously stated intent to *rid the world" of the victim. His videos include images
of tombstones with the victim’s name and commercial ads (MyHeritage) placed next to
the victim’s and her mother's faces to monetize their distress.; Cleoreytb (Josse
Claes/Lorene Bazior): The technical node responsible for over 20 videos featuring
explicit p Cl ytb's corp g ion for "Web search portal activities®
(Jan 2025) matches the exact timeline of the current SEO-poisoning campaign.; Curtis
Price: Operates as a "mutilation node,” producing videos that depict the victim's face
with simulated bruises and “cutting® her face out of frames to signal physical violence.;
Current Searches: "Lillee Jean XXX," "Lillee Jean Nude," and "Lillee Jean porn." By
linking court documents to explicit keywords, the syndicate ensures that any
professional or legal entity searching the victim's name is met with a wall of Al-
generated forgeries and leaked private data. On Lolcow.farm, the syndicate continues to
publish deepfakes of the victim as "bald" (a traditional symbol of humiliation) with the
command "“SURRENDER LILLEE." The "Surrender" rhetoric on Lolcow.farm mirrors
Dickens' stalking behavior. Under 18 U.S.C. § 1512, using unredacted judicial records to
harass a "Jane Doe" (the victim) or her family is Witness/Victim Tampering. It is an
attempt to use the court's own documents as a weapon to *hinder, delay, or prevent*
the victim from seeking legal protection. By posting this narrative, they provide
“context" for the explicit keyword stuffing (*Lillee Jean XXX*), attempting to legitimize

5. At 53:10 user PigeonSalad1996 refers to Trueman as a "cum dumpster
and needing her "resume”.

6. At 1:10:30 by this point a user Deadarm_0 insists they should make a
comedy movie about Lillee Jean with found footage; on a press release
detailing deepfakes made of her shown on the left side to inspire stalking,
and harassment. By

7.1:19:19 users become "sponsors" and commercially, this RICO
syndicate starts earning money off their story.

Kiwifarms/Lolcow.farm:
https://original.lolcow.farm/pt/src/1767384232462.jpg (MahtoTopah
Nexus):

Physical Surveillance: Joshua Conner Moon's platforms continue to host
HQ photos of the victim's residence and speculate on their current
location. This constitutes Interstate Stalking (18 U.S.C. § 2261A).

1/28/26, 4:29 PM Complaint Submitted - Internet Crime Complaint Center (1C3)

family's relocation (dickens published a deepfake on X stating the "city
marshal" is around. Physical Endangerment: The forum posts floor
plans and interior photos of the family's home, creating a high risk for
physical confrontation. 3. Non-Consensual Digital Imagery (NCDI)
Deepfakes: High-quality Hijab and Bikini deepfakes of the victims are
being disseminated on X, YouTube, and Discord (Deepfake Abuse:
Suspect Mahto Topah (Cody Dickens) has created and distributed
deepfakes merging the victim's 17-year-old body with her mother’s
face). Monetization: These forgeries are used in "Death Hoax" banners
by Kyle Keane LLC (Primink) and others to sabotage the victim's
professional career.

Other Information

If an email was used in this incident, please provide a copy of the
entire email including full email headers.

11l. APPLICABLE FEDERAL STATUTES BROKEN- Statute- Violation18
U.S.C. § 1030 (CFAA)-Unauthorized scraping and TCP probing via
Tencent Building nodes.18 U.S.C. § 1343 (Wire Fraud)-Coordinated
fundraising and professional sabotage via Wily Knight Corp.18 U.S.C. §
1512-Dissemination of Judge’s signature to intimidate
witnesses/victims.18 U.S.C. § 2261A-Interstate stalking using "Tick
Tock" countdowns and residential floor plans. TAKE IT DOWN Act

(2025)-Failure of platforms tf a
minor likeness.

03/ 06/ 2026
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Tips, Complaints, and Referrals

Summary Page - Before Submission

This export was generated on Wed, December 10, 2025 at 03:00:05 PM EST

The Complaint Form questions that you responded to, the answers you entered for those questions, and any documents
that you have uploaded to this TCR are listed below.

What is your complaint about?

Please select the option that best describes your complaint.
Other

Is this supplemental information to a previous complaint?
No

SPONSORS:

* VIDEO: https://youtu.be/3eBYCvivmyc

* Sponsor: Sour Boys

* Timestamp: [22:50)

* SAMPLE: "How do you even fake a sponsor by the way,” and then immediately provides the "sponsorship™ saying, "this
video is sponsored by sour boys go to sour... and buy some candy” [22:50).

VIDEOQ: https://youtu.be/EUWf-ECdRJ8

* Sponsor: Rocket Money

* Timestamp: [00:43)

* SAMPLE: “The sponsorship segment begins at [00:43] with the line: "thank you to Rocket money for sponsoring this
video."; Go to Rocket money.com or click the link in the description. The unique URL mentioned is Rocket money.com/Umpa
at [01:59].

VIDEO: httpsi//www.youtube.com/watch?v=e9phRx1liZU.

SPONSOR: MYHERTIAGE

TIMESTAMP 3:08, 33:14

SAMPLE: The sponsor mention for MyHeritage in the video "The Youtuber Wedding That Destroyed Lives | Channon Rose vs
Amber Walter” by Primink begins at [03:08). The line introducing the sponsor is: "Before we continue today’s video is
sponsored by my Heritage” [03:08]. A secondary mention of the sponsor occurs at [33:14] where Laura Trueman and Lillee
Jean are put in before the video ends and a QR code is given

VIDEO: The video URL is: https://youtu.be/YOaCJlSrezxc.

* SPONSOR: CHANNEL DONATIONS

* SAMPLE: Thanking "Jackasspito” for a $2 donation: [01:05]; Thanking “Latchki Gothway" for a 16-month medium
gut (channel membership/donation): [37:50]; Thanking "Michael Fam" for a $5 donation: [38:00)

VIDEO: URL: https://youtu.be/avhNPiT9y2I

* Channel: Curtis Price

* Sponsor: FREECASH

* SAMPLE: The video contains a sponsor mention for Freecash between [02:33) and (04:29]; [02:33] -"...if you guys are
trying to make some extra money through a sight hustle then you should check out the sponsor of today's video free cash.”;
[04:25)-"Thank you for free cash for sponsoring today's video...”; The video is sponsored by Free Cash. The sponsorship
segment begins at [02:33] and concludes at [04:27].

VIDEO URL: httpsz/youtu.be/AQVrdQxi-cE
Channel: CURTIS PRICE

SPONSOR: Raid: Shadow Legends
SAMPLE

* Sponsor Mention Start: [01:54]

* Sponsor Mention End: [03:55)

VIDEO: https://youtu.be/nfM-qJFSCNo
Channel: CURTIS PRICE

In your own words, describe the conduct or situation you are complaining about.

This complaint details the failure of a major publicly traded entity (YouTube's parent company) to disclose material risks and
liabilities arising from its active or passive complicity in an organized, for-profit criminal harassment campaign. This failure
constitutes a potential violation of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Rule 10b-5) by concealing material facts that
expose the company to massive, undisclosed financial and regulatory penalties. The company is facilitating and profiting
from the campaign, which includes: deepfake nudes, graphic violence, criminal threats, and potential links to the Dark Web.
The Material Failures and Undisclosed Investor Risks

A. Monetization of Criminal Content and Reputational Harm

YouTube is generating significant revenue from a dedicated, multi-year campaign targeting my identity and likeness. This
extends to my entire family. The duration and severity of the content prove that this is not an isolated incident but a
systemic failure of moderation and internal controls. Explicit Commercial & Malicious Intent: Perpetrators, as documented,
have stated their goal is to "...make money off her [victim] because ultimately, that's what pisses her off the most," thereby
confirming the malicious, for-profit nature of the content (tied to a Belgian media firm, CleoreYTB, a Wales firm Curtis Price,
connected to a Michigan corporation Kyle Keane LLC. "Primink", to a Maine firm called Turkey Tom by Thomas Hanson, and
Caleb Phelps "Oompaville". Violent and Abusive Content Refused Removal: The platform has refused to remove videos that
show my face with bruises and tombstones, and depictions of me being shot. This refusal to act on graphic, violent, and
non-consensual content exposes the company to extreme public backlash, regulatory fines, and civil liability. Complicity &
Siding with Criminals: Despite being notified, the platform is ignoring all legitimate legal claims (copyrights, criminal years
long harassment) and has actively sided with criminals currently under NYPD and FBI investigation. Their X account has
tweeted to them publicly, endorsing stolen IP, and criminal harassment, and in videos it can be shown them emailing to the
corporations they will "help" them. This choice to protect malicious revenue streams over compliance creates an immediate
and severe liability. Breakdown of Internal Controls and Aiding and Abetting Harassment: The company's actions
demonstrate a fundamental breakdown of internal controls that goes beyond negligence and borders on complicity: Failure
to Protect Privacy and Safety: YouTube has ignored multiple complaints containing my residential address within videos,
directly endangering my safety and showing contempt for its own policies. Aiding Criminal Threats on X (Twitter): YouTube,
through its corporate presence on X (formerly Twitter), has helped aid the campaign and directed harm against me, which
has led directly to death threats and a clear pattern of criminal harassment. NYPD Subpoena and Deepfakes: The NYPD was

forced to subpoena the Discord server of one of the YouTubers the platform publicly championed because deepfake nudes
were mentioned on the server. This confirms that the criminal activity is known to law enforcement and directly tied to the
content being monetized on the platform. Undisclosed Risk of Dark Web Activity and Data Security Flaws

The content and users on YouTube are being used to feed criminal activities, posing an unquantified security and
compliance risk to the company's integrity: Content and user activity on YouTube are being used to facilitate and advertise
illicit activity on the Dark Web. This relationship exposes the company to investigation by federal agencies (including the
DOJ) focused on organized crime, money laundering, and illicit trade. Insider Access and Data Scraping: The timing of the
harassment campaign coincides with: A known pattern of data scraping linked to TENCENT/ACE/ACEVILLE (entities with
advanced data access), raising major security concerns. Confirmed access to my personal online profiles (website,
LinkedIn) by YouTube employees both before and during the escalation of the criminal campaign. The company's failure to
address this pattern — which includes platform complicity, insider access, and a clear connection to criminal and Dark Web
activity —represents a material failure to disclose systemic operational, compliance, and legal risks to its investors.

| request that the SEC initiate an investigation into YouTube's parent company for potential securities violations, specifically
concerning the failure to disclose the material liabilities and risks associated with: Revenue Generated from Criminal
Activity: Profiting off non-consensual deepfakes, threats, and harassment.

Internal Controls Deficiency: The repeated, documented failure to remove legally federally actionable content and
complicity in targeted harassment, which exposes the company to massive regulatory and legal fines.

Undisclosed Security Risks: The nexus between data scraping, employee access, and the use of the platform's users to fuel
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Your IC3 Complaint

Submission ID: b030c04270a147e3af217f10a15944b2

Date Filed: 1/7/2026 4:11:07 PM EST

Were you the one affected in thisincident?  Yes

Your IC3 Complaint
Submission ID: 93637059b66b4548ac1fe44d7283d9c4
Date Filed: 1/7/2026 3:54:46 PM EST
Were you the one affected in this incident? Yes

Your Contact Information

§C§ YourIC3 Complaint
Submission ID: 22e455ce9b6b4087a46d8c5e6d75d9dd
Date Filed: 1/4/2026 3:00:34 PM EST

INDEX NO. 703276/2026

{g B Your IC3 Complaint

Submission ID: ff9cc9c8d11e4043ac95b112¢c708e5f2
Date Filed: 12/11/2025 7:01:24 PM EST

Were you the one affected in thisincident? Yes

Your Cantact Infarmatinn

{mg  { Your IC3 Complaint

Submission ID: 868ed8eacda245e78467b5a17d431d84

Date Filed: 11/29/2025 10:33:09 AM EST
Were you the one affected in this Yes
incident?

Your IC3 Complaint
Submission ID: 4a5a33996ee146b99fa3840364256600
Date Filed: 12/11/2024 2:26:35 PM EST
Were you the one affected in this Yes

incident?

“iry) FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

M ReportFraud.ftc.gov

Consumer Report To The FTC
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FTC Report Number
195983339

iy FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

‘Q‘,’é ReportFraud.ftc.gov

Consumer Report To The FTC

“irvi) FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

M ReportFraud.ftc.gov

Consumer Report To The FTC

FTC Report Number
194380714

FTC Report Number
194376317

“iv FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

M ReportFraud.ftc.gov

Consumer Report To The FTC

FTC Report Number
194381036

“iri) FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

M ReportFraud.ftc.gov

Consumer Report To The FTC

FTC Report Number
194378728
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